LLANTRISANT

Rhondda-Cynon-taff County Borough Council

The town of Llantrisant is one of the oldest places of settlement in Wales.   It is           strategically situated and its motto is “A city that is set on a hill cannot be Hid”      Matthew ch.V, v.xiv.  

It was granted its charter of incorporation on the 4th May 1346, by Hugh Despenser, Lord of Glamorgan, at Cardiff Castle.

The Town was dissolved by virtue of the Municipal Corporations Act 1883; and on the 17th December 1889 the Charity Commission introduced a scheme to set up the       Llantrisant Town Trust, by which the Freemen of Llantrisant are governed.

The Trust is comprised of thirteen trustees who are elected for a term of five years in each case as follows, viz:

· “nine (hereinafter called Freemen’s trustees) by persons whose names are for the time being on the Freemen’s Roll”.

· “Three by the vestry of the Parish of Llantrisant (now Llantrisant Community  Council members)”.

· “One by the Cambrian Archaelogical Association”.

Despite the scheme of 1889, which implies rights of claim by widows of Freemen and    apprentices, no one in these categories has been admitted.    Rights pass from an       enrolled Freeman to his son or via a Freeman’s daughter to the husband of such a daughter; but are not exercisable by the daughters themselves.

Honorary Freemen have not been admitted to the Roll since 1835.

In the last ten years about 300 new admissions have been made.   There are many   Freemen living in Llantrisant today, although a high percentage of a total of about 2000 live elsewhere in England and Wales and overseas.

“ Every person whose name shall for the time being be on the Roll shall be entitled to   exercise and enjoy his or her rights to pasture on the said commons of Cymdda (Llantrisant) and Graig as fully and effectually and for such time and in such a manner as he or she, by virtue of any statute, charter, by-law or custom in force at the time of   passing the Municipal Corporations Act 1883, might or could have had or enjoyed such rights in case that Act had not been passed”.

Only cattle and horses are permitted to graze on the Commons and must be owned by Freemen.

“Subject as aforesaid, the Trustees shall apply the yearly income of the trust as follows:

· “First, in defraying the proper expenses of and incidental to the administration and management of the Trust.

· Secondly, in maintaining the town pump at Llantrisant.

· Thirdly, to any town improvement at Llantrisant, subject to the approval of the     Charity Commissioners.”

A  formal admission ceremony takes place in May each year ( I.e. the Court Leet) when forms of claims are scrutinised against the Roll in public gaze.  The Roll is contained in book form by the Clerk of Llantrisant Town Trust.

After the Court leet has adjourned, the Court Leet Dinner is held and is well attended.  Evey seven years the Freemen and their families, as well as well-wishers  “beat the bounds” of the former seven mile long borough boundary.    The Freemen like to style themselves unofficially “ The Black Army” because they claim to have originated in a troop of long-bowmen who fought under the Black Prince at Crecy in August 1346.  They have their own tie, with a distinctive black and design.
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Title of Leader of the Court
	Not known
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Howard Thomas

Clerk to the Llantrisant Town Trust

37 Trenos Place

Bryncae
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Pontyclun CF72  9RX

(01443) 222680

Brief history

The town and corporation of Llantrisant, with its portreeve, constable of the castle, aldermen and burgesses, was dissolved by the Municipal Corporation Act of 1883, and the Llantrisant Town Trust was established by the Charity Commissioners six years later. Hereditaments belonging to the Trust are vested in the Official Trustee of Charity Lands. The affairs of the Trust are managed by thirteen trustees, nine being selected from the Freemen’s Roll, three being representatives of local authorities and one a member of the Cambrian Archaeological Association, to manage the property of the Trust.

The Trust acquired the freehold of the lordship in 1973, together with the manorial rights over 284 acres of common land, over which the freemen have grazing rights

A Court Leet is held each May at the old Llantrisant Guildhall, which is the property of the Trust. New Freemen are enrolled at the Court and the ceremony is followed by a dinner. Perambulation of the boundaries (beating the bounds), covering a distance of seven miles (normally walked in early une), is undertaken every seven years, and due to take place on the 7 June 2003. The Town’s silver mace, dated 1633, is used on all official occasions.
